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Lewisham

Key details
Also known as Oakleigh House
Addresses At 17 Murray Street, Wilston, Queensland 4051
Type of place House
Period Federation 1890-1914
Style Queenslander
Lot plan L1_RP896062
Key dates Local Heritage Place Since — 1 January 2004
Date of Citation — August 2015
Construction Roof: Corrugated iron;

Walls: Timber
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Criterion for listing (A) Historical; (D) Representative

This house was probably designed by Henry Edmund Wyman, an Ipswich architect, as an investment property
for the Queensland National Bank. Wyman designed a similar bank manager’s residence in Nicholas Street,
Ipswich, in 1893. The Queensland National Bank obtained this site, part of the ‘Langley Bank’ Estate, in 1896.
The house, known as ‘Oakleigh House’ or ‘Fairy Knowe’, was leased to tenants, including Edward Rees, father
of artist Lloyd Rees. In the late 1940s it became part of the reception and wedding centre venue along with 29
Murray Street, but reverted to use as a single dwelling in 1995.

History

Wilson was sparsely settled from the mid-nineteenth century, desirable for its proximity to the Newmarket
Saleyards and other industries, but too far from the city to be in high demand. A nineteen acre allotment,
including this site, was granted to William McDonald in 1856, but apparently was not occupied.

A building and economic boom in the 1880s encouraged land sales. Purchasers included David Laughland
Brown, who bought suburban allotment 22, a 16 acre block running between Newmarket Road and Enoggera
Creek. He had ‘Langley Bank’ built on his estate, fronting Newmarket Road. However, the entire site was
transferred to the Queensland National Bank in 1896, possibly as part of the dissolution of Brown’s company.

The opening of the long-promised Enoggera railway line in 1899 spurred residential growth in Windsor, Wilston
and Newmarket. Taking advantage of the residential potential of the area, the Queensland National Bank
rechristened Brown’s estate the ‘Langley Bank Estate’ and began to sell subdivisions in 1901.1t was one of a
number of large existing estates which were carved up into residential allotments in the early years of the 1900s.
Residential estates such as this one and the Harle Estate on the northern side of Wilston Railway Station,
provided convenient access for residents to the city by train.

It is possible that the bank transported one of its former bank residences to the site in the early twentieth century.
The property bears a striking resemblance to another former bank residence, the Ipswich branch manager’s
residence, constructed in 1893 and moved to Moggill in the 1970s. According to Buster Zoeller, a former resident
of the neighbouring house, 29 Murray St, this house was transported from Ipswich by bullock dray in the early
1900s. The house, known as ‘Fairy Knowe’, was advertised for let in 1902.

James Buyers, branch accountant for AMP, moved into ‘Fairy Knowe’ on Murray Street in 1903. Buyers’ house
was offered for sale in February 1909 and Edward Rees, father of artist Lloyd Rees, moved in by August 1909.
Zoeller remembers the artist, Lloyd Rees, living in the house, using the small building in the yard as a studio.

Offered for rent again in 1911, the house was occupied by Frederick and Matilda Lucas, and title to the property
was granted to Matilda in 1916. The Lucases renamed the house ‘Lewisham’. Rees’ studio building served as a
school room for the Lucas and Zoeller children who were taught by a private tutor.
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The elegant house was until recently included in the premises of the 29 Murray Street reception complex and
used for weddings and other formal occasions. A detail plan from circa the 1930s shows the house, then named
‘Lewisham’, set in a large yard with a tennis court.

The former schoolroom has recently been joined to the main house by an extension. 17 Murray Street is now a
private residence.

Statement of significance

Relevant assessment criteria

This is a place of local heritage significance and meets one or more of the local heritage criteria under the
Heritage planning scheme policy of the Brisbane City Plan 2014. It is significant because:

Historical
CRITERION A

The place is important in demonstrating the evolution or pattern of the city's or local area’s history
for the evidence it provides of the development of Wilston as an upper to middle class suburb around the turn of

the twentieth century.

Representative
CRITERION D

The place is important in demonstrating the principal characteristics of a particular class or classes of cultural
places

as a fine example of a substantial Federation era residence built in the popular Bungalow style.

References

1. Brisbane City Council Detail Plans
2. Brisbane City Council, Properties on the Web, Building Cards
3. Information kindly provided by Mrs Joanne McGuire, 16 June 1998

Date of Citation — August 2015 Page 3



Copyright Brisbane City Council

Note: This citation has been prepared on the basis of evidence available at the time including an external
examination of the building. The statement of significance is a summary of the most culturally important aspects
of the property based on the available evidence, and may be re-assessed if further information becomes
available. The purpose of this citation is to provide an informed evaluation for heritage registration and
information. This does not negate the necessity for a thorough conservation study by a qualified practitioner,
before any action is taken which may affect its heritage significance.

Citation prepared by — Brisbane City Council (page revised June 2022)
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